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Maricopa County

County Administrative Office

December 19, 2014

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
Maricopa County

County Administration Building

301 W. Jefferson Street

Phoenix, AZ 85003

Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S.) 8§41-1279.21 requires the Office of the Auditor General to
conduct financial audits of the accounts and records of County governments. Pursuant to
the statute, the Office of the Auditor General audited the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) of Maricopa County in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards for the year ended June 30, 2014.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of Maricopa
County. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility of the completeness and
reliability of all the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of Maricopa County has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for
preparation of Maricopa County’s financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Because the cost of internal control should not
outweigh their benefits, Maricopa County’s comprehensive framework of internal controls
has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material
respects.

The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements of Maricopa County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, are free of material
misstatement. The independent audit involves obtaining audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit includes assessments of risk of
material misstatement of the financial statements, evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on the Maricopa County financial
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. The auditors concluded that the
financial statements were considered fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The
independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of
this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of Maricopa County was part of a
broader, federally mandated Single Audit designed to meet the special needs of federal
grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the
independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements,
but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving
the administration of federal awards. This report will be available in Maricopa County’s
separately issued Single Audit Report to be issued at a future date.
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GAAP requires management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately following the independent
auditor’s report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. This MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

County Profile

Maricopa County was established on February 14, 1871, and is located in the south-central portion of the
State of Arizona. According to Arizona Department of Commerce, at July 1, 2013, Maricopa County
contained 59.9 percent of the State’s total population (www.population.az.gov). The County occupies
9,225 square miles making it the 14" largest county in land area in the United States. Phoenix is the
capital of Arizona as well as the county seat for Maricopa County.

Maricopa County operates under a five member elected Board of Supervisors who appoints a County
Manager. The County Manager is responsible for the general administration and overall operations of the
various County departments. The County has several elected officials including the Assessor, Clerk of
the Superior Court, Constables, County Attorney, Recorder, Sheriff, Superintendent of Schools, and the
Treasurer.

Maricopa County offers a wide variety of governmental services, including:

e Community Resources: Library District, Parks and Recreation, Stadium District, and
Superintendent of Schools

e County Administration: Board of Supervisors, County Manager, Assessor’s Office, Clerk of the
Board, Elections, Finance, Internal Audit, Research and Reporting, Office of Management and
Budget, Recorder, Office of Procurement Services, Human Resources, Information Technology,
Treasurer’s Office, and Facilities Management

¢ Public Safety, Justice and Law Enforcement: Clerk of the Superior Court, County Attorney, Trial
Court, Adult Probation, Juvenile Probation, Sheriffs Department, Public Defender, Emergency
Management, Correctional Health, Planning and Development, Constables, Justice Courts, and
Public Fiduciary

¢ Public Health and Welfare Services: Public Health, Air Quality, Employee Benefits and Health,
Human Services, Animal Care and Control, Environmental Services, and Medical Examiner

e Public Works: Flood Control District, Transportation Department, and Waste Resources and
Recycling

The annual budget serves as the foundation for Maricopa County’s financial planning and control. The
County is required by A.R.S. 842-17101 et. seq. to annually prepare and adopt a balanced budget.
Arizona law further requires that no expenditure shall be made or liability incurred in excess of the
amounts budgeted except as provided by law. Maricopa County’s annual budget is available on the
internet at the following address: http://www.maricopa.gov/budget/.

Economic Outlook
Maricopa County has a variety of industries within its boundaries with the majority comprised of high tech,
financial, and service industries. Some of the major employers located in the state include Wal-Mart,

Banner Health Systems, Wells Fargo & Co., Intel Corp., Honeywell, and various local governments
(Greater Phoenix Economic Council, November 2013).
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Because of a favorable climate and mild weather conditions, tourism is also a large factor in the strength
of the local economy. Major sporting events can be held year around and many people come to the area
during the winter months. Maricopa County is the home to teams from major league professional sports,
which include the Arizona Cardinals of the National Football League (NFL), Phoenix Suns of the National
Basketball Association (NBA), Phoenix Mercury of the Women’s National Basketball Association (WNBA)
Arizona Diamondbacks of Major League Baseball (MLB) and the Phoenix Coyotes of the National Hockey
League (NHL). Maricopa County also hosts several major league baseball teams for the annual spring
training Cactus League. Maricopa County is also a host to other major sporting events such as the Waste
Management Phoenix Open golf tournament and Phoenix International Raceway. Cities within Maricopa
County also host college bowl games such as the Fiesta Bowl and the Buffalo Wild Wings Bowl. In 2015,
Arizona is host to the 2015 Super Bowl and Pro Bowl, both of which are held in Glendale, a major city
within Maricopa County. In addition, several events for the Super Bowl are held in other cities within the
County. The 2015 Super Bowl and its related events are expected to bring in an estimated $500 million
economic impact to the State of Arizona in 2015.

The Arizona economy is still at a slow pace and growth is likely to continue. The forecast calls for state
growth to pick up speed during fiscal years 2015-2017, with gains across most indicators far exceeding
national results (www.eller.arizona.edu). Maricopa County’s unemployment rate is 5.8 percent as of
September 2014, which remains below both the State of Arizona and the United States unemployment
rates of 6.9 percent and 5.9 percent, respectively (www.laborstats.az.gov).

Financial Policies and Long-Term Financial Planning

Financial Planning — Maricopa County has a fiscally conservative management philosophy, which has
allowed the County to be financially successful. Maricopa County prepares a five-year financial forecast,
with the assistance of an economist, which is updated on a quarterly basis for several major funds,
including the General Fund and Detention Operations Fund. The five-year forecast provides a
conservative estimate of the County’s fiscal condition given realistic economic trends, current Board
policies, and existing laws. The forecast does not incorporate anticipated policy changes, spending
priorities, or proposed new revenue sources.

Capital Improvement Program — Maricopa County’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) identifies
capital projects to be completed over the next five years. Because these projects typically span more than
one fiscal year, the plans are updated annually to track existing projects, identify new projects, and
update funding estimates and forecasts. It is the County’s philosophy and policy that new capital projects
will be undertaken only if future operating revenues are reasonably estimated to be sufficient to support
associated future operating costs. Operating costs associated with new facilities are budgeted by the user
department in conjunction with the partnering department such as Facilities Management and Enterprise
Technology. Estimated operating costs, as well as anticipated savings in lease costs and operating costs
of facilities to be replaced are factored into the County’s ten-year financial forecast.

Debt Management — Maricopa County utilizes a modified “pay as you go” financial policy for large capital
improvement projects, large technology projects, and other infrastructure. The County pays cash for
many capital improvements, or utilizes lease reversions or other funding sources from the General Fund
to pay for large dollar projects.

Cash Management — Maricopa County maintains deposits and investments in the Treasurer’s Pool and
outside of the Treasurer’'s Pool. The Treasurer’s Pool invests all idle monies not specifically invested for
a fund or program. In addition, the Treasurer determines the fair value of those pooled investments
monthly and at June 30th. Deposits and investments held outside of the Treasurer’s Investment Pool
represent a small portion of the County’s total deposits and investments.

It is the County’s investment policy to: collateralize all deposits by at least 101 percent of the deposits not
covered by depository insurance; preserve the principal value and the interest income of an investment;
hold investments to maturity, where practical, to avoid any loss on investments resulting from an early



sale or retirement of an investment; and require all of the Treasurer’'s securities be held by the agent or
trust department and in the County’s name.

Expenditure Limitation — On June 30, 1980, Arizona voters approved general propositions amending
the Arizona Constitution to establish expenditure and revenue limitations for local governments. The
purpose of the expenditure limitation is to control expenditures and to limit future increases in spending to
adjustments for inflation, deflation and population growth of the County. The Constitution also limits the
amount of revenues that may be generated from property taxes. A two-percent plus new construction
annual increase is the maximum allowed by law unless special voter approval is obtained. This report will
be available in Maricopa County’s separately issued Expenditure Limitation Report to be issued at a
future date.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Maricopa County for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both U.S. general accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation and audit of this report could not be accomplished without the efficient and dedicated
services of the Department of Finance staff, the assistance of administrative personnel in the various
departments, and the competent service of the Office of the Auditor General. We appreciate all of those
who assisted in and contributed to the preparation of this report. We also wish to express our sincere
appreciation to the Board of Supervisors for their support in planning and overseeing the financial
operations of the County in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Tom Manos Shelby L. Scharbach
County Manager Assistant County Manager - Chief Financial Officer
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Matricopa County

Citizens Audit Advisory Committee

June 30, 2014

The Honorable Maricopa County Board of Supervisors

The Maricopa County Citizens Audit Advisory Committee has prepared this letter for
inclusion in the county’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) according to the
committee’s charter. Described herein are the committee’s composition, responsibilities,
and an account of how the responsibilities were discharged.

Composition of the Committee

The membership of the committee shall consist of five voting members and three non-voting
members. The voting members shall be board of supervisor appointees from the public and
shall serve two-year terms. The non-voting members shall be the county’s chief financial
officer, the county attorney, the auditor general, or their designees. The chairman of the
board of supervisors shall appoint a committee chairman from the voting members. The
committee chairman shall serve a one-year term.

Responsibilities of the Committee

The committee’s primary function is to assist the board of supervisors in fulfilling its
oversight responsibilities. The committee accomplishes this function by reviewing the
county’s financial information, the established systems of internal controls, and the audit
process. The committee also suggests areas requiring audit emphasis. Specific duties of the
committee are described in the committee charter,

Accomplishments of the Committee (Fiscal Year 2013-2014)
The Citizens Audit Advisory Committee:

e Reviewed the county’s internal andit activities and management’s responses thereto.

* Reviewed the county’s annual financial statements and issues related to the external
audit performed by the Arizona State Auditor General,

¢ Provided guidance and commentary as needed.
e Enhanced the communication between the internal and external auditors.

¢ Held meetings in accordance with charter requirements.

Respectfuily,

7%%@‘\——./1—:\/"

Ryan Wimmer, Chair
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STATE OF ARIZONA
DEBRA K. DAVENPORT, CPA OFFICE OF THE MELANIE M. CHESNEY
AUDITOR GENERAL DEPUTY AUDITOR GENERAL

AUDITOR GENERAL

Independent Auditors’ Report

Members of the Arizona State Legislature

The Board of Supervisors of
Maricopa County, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of Maricopa County as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of four departments, which account for the following percentages of the assets and deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, revenues, and expenses or expenditures of the opinion units
affected:

Assets and Liabilities
Deferred and Deferred Expenses/
Opinion Unit/Department Outflows Inflows Revenues Expenditures

Government-wide Statements
Governmental activities:

Stadium District 5.83% 4.81% 0.60% 0.86%

Risk Management 0.73% 16.45% 0% 0%

Employee Benefits Trust 1.11% 4.31% 0% 0%
Business-type activities:

Housing Authority 100% 100% 100% 100%
Fund Statements
Aggregate remaining fund information:

Stadium District 0.84% 0.10% 0.18% 0.22%

Risk Management 1.32% 36.78% 0.28% 0.18%

Employee Benefits Trust 2.00% 9.64% 1.22% 1.33%
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Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar
as they relate to the amounts included for Stadium District, which includes the Ballpark Operations and Cactus League
Operations Special Revenue Funds, the Stadium District Debt Service Fund, and the Long Term Project Reserve
Capital Projects Fund; the Risk Management and Employee Benefits Trust Internal Service Funds; and the Housing
Authority Enterprise Fund, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the County’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of Maricopa County as of June 30, 2014, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, for the year ended June 30, 2014, the County adopted new
accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 65, ltems Previously Reported as
Assets and Liabilities. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

As described in Note 4 to the financial statements, the County restated beginning net position/fund balances of its
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014, to correct misstatements in its previously issued financial
statements. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 5
through 15, the Budgetary Comparison Schedules on pages 73 through 76, the Schedule of Agent Retirement Plans’
Funding Progress on pages 77 through 78, and the Modified Approach for Infrastructure Assets information on page
79 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.



Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund statements and schedules and the introductory
and statistical sections listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
required parts of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards by us
and the other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the
reports of the other auditors, the combining and individual fund statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Compliance Over the Use of Highway User Revenue Fund and Other Dedicated State Transportation Revenue Monies

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the County failed to use
highway user revenue fund monies received by the County pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 28, Chapter 18,
Article 2, and any other dedicated state transportation revenues received by the County solely for the authorized
transportation purposes, insofar as they relate to accounting matters. However, our audit was not directed primarily
toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other
matters may have come to our attention regarding the County’s noncompliance with the use of highway user revenue
fund monies and other dedicated state transportation revenues, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.

The communication related to compliance over the use of highway user revenue fund and other dedicated state
transportation revenue monies in the preceding paragraph is intended solely for the information and use of the
members of the Arizona State Legislature, the Board of Supervisors, management, and other responsible parties within
the County and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will issue our report on our consideration of the County’s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters at a future date. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Debbie Davenport
Auditor General

December 19, 2014






Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This discussion and analysis is intended to be an easily readable analysis of Maricopa County’s (County)
financial activities based on currently known facts, decisions or conditions. This analysis focuses on
current year activities and should be read in conjunction with the Transmittal Letter that begins on page vii
and with the County’s basic financial statements following this section.

Financial Highlights

The total assets and deferred outflows of resources of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close
of the fiscal year by $4,635.9 million (net position), a decrease of 0.1 percent from the prior year. Of
this amount, $640.0 million (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the County’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

Composition of Net Position
(in millions)

Unrestricted -
$640.0 (14%)

Restricted -
$544.4 (12%)

Net investment in
capital assets-
$3,451.5 (74%)

The County’s total net position as reported in the Statement of Activities decreased by $5.7 million
from the prior year. The County’s primary sources of revenue are from taxes, grants and
contributions, and charges for services.

Revenue Sources

(in millions)
Capital Grants &
Other - Contributions -
Operating Grants & $29.5 $51.0 (3%)
Contributions - (2%)

$274.6 (15%) _——n _

Charges for Services -
$253.7 (14%)

Taxes - $1,201.8 (66%)

The County’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $1,237.4 million, a decrease
in fund balance of $119.3 million over the prior fiscal year. Approximately 98.2 percent of the
combined fund balances or $1,215.3 million is spendable and available to meet the County’s current
and future needs.

Spendable fund balance for the General Fund decreased by 53.1 percent to $121.2 million;
approximately 13.8 percent of total General Fund expenditures. See page 10 for a description of
spendable fund balance. In accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.), this entire amount is
budgeted to be spent in the next fiscal year. A.R.S. 842-17151 requires that total estimated sources
of revenue must equal the total estimated expenditures in the budget for the current fiscal year. In
addition, A.R.S. 842-17102 stipulates that the estimated expenditures may include an amount for
unanticipated contingencies or emergencies.
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e The County’s enterprise fund, the Housing Authority Fund, reported net position of $31.9 million, of
which $28.2 million is invested in capital assets, $2.2 million is restricted, and $1.5 million is
unrestricted.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial
statements. The County’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) Government-wide
financial statements, 2) Fund financial statements, and 3) Notes to the basic financial statements.
Required Supplementary Information is included in addition to the basic financial statements. The
Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules — Nonmajor Funds begin on page 90.

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
County’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector businesses.

e The Statement of Net Position presents information on all County assets and deferred outflows of
resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

e The Statement of Activities presents information showing how net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government; public
safety; highways and streets; health, welfare and sanitation; culture and recreation; education; and
interest on long-term debt. The business-type activities of the County consist of the Housing Authority of
Maricopa County. On July 1, 2013, the Housing Authority Fund was reclassified to a proprietary fund to
correspond with the manner in which they are presented in the Housing Authority’s separately issued
financial statements. See Note 3 — Reporting Changes and Note 4 — Beginning Balances Restated for
additional information.

Component units are legally separate entities for which the County is considered to be financially
accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the
County’s operations. Therefore, data from these units is combined with data of the primary government.
Discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the County. The
Housing Authority of Maricopa County, Maricopa County Flood Control District, Maricopa County Library
District, Maricopa County Public Finance Corporation, Maricopa County Special Assessment Districts,
Maricopa County Stadium District, and the Maricopa County Street Lighting Districts are reported as
blended component units. The County has no discretely presented component units.

The Government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 20-21 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All
of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds

and fiduciary funds.
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e Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a county’s near-
term financing requirements. Governmental funds include the general, special revenue, debt service,
and capital projects funds.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental funds Balance Sheet and the governmental funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County reports six major governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds Balance Sheet and in the governmental funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, Detention Operations Fund,
County Improvement Debt Fund, Detention Capital Projects Fund, General Fund County
Improvements Fund, and Technology Capital Improvement Fund.

Data from the other governmental funds (nonmajor) are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the
form of combining statements, which begin on page 90 of this report.

The governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 22-26 of this report.

e Proprietary funds are maintained two ways. Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses
an enterprise fund to account for the Housing Authority Fund. Internal service funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County’s various
functions. The County uses internal service funds to account for its equipment services,
telecommunications, reprographics, risk management, employee benefits trust, and sheriff
warehouse functions. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements.

Fund financial statements for the enterprise fund provides the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The Housing Authority Fund is considered
to be a major fund of the County. The County’s internal service funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation in the proprietary funds financial statements. Individual fund data for the
internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements, which begin on page 230 of
this report.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28-30 of this report.

e Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because
the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The fiduciary funds financial statements can be found on pages 32-33 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes can be found on
pages 37-70 of this report.
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Required Supplementary Information is presented concerning the County’s General Fund and
Detention Operations Fund. A budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for both of these funds
to demonstrate compliance with budget and additional information is provided in the Note to Budgetary
Comparison Schedules. Also presented is the schedule of funding progress for the County’s two agent
retirement plans and infrastructure assets reported using the modified approach. Required supplementary
information can be found on pages 73-79 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
Net Position

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The following
table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position of the County for June 30, 2014, as compared to
the prior year.

Statement of Net Position
As of June 30

(in millions)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
% Chg

2014 2013* 2014 2013* 2014 2013* P/Y
Current and other assets $ 14763 $ 16332 $ 6.7 $ 6.1 $ 1,483.0 $ 1,639.3 (9.5)%
Capital assets 3,532.8 3,433.5 33.5 33.1 3,566.3 3,466.6 29
Total assets 5,009.1 5,066.7 40.2 39.2 5,049.3 5,105.9 (1.1)
Deferred Outflows 0.5 0.5 >100.0
Current liabilities 189.8 211.2 1.9 1.3 191.7 2125 (9.8)
Long-term liabilities 215.8 246.9 6.4 4.7 222.2 251.6 (11.7)
Total liabilities 405.6 458.1 8.3 6.0 413.9 464.1 (10.8)
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 3,423.3 3,307.2 28.2 28.4 34515 3,335.6 35
Restricted 542.2 623.3 2.2 2.2 544.4 625.5 (13.0)
Unrestricted 638.5 678.0 1.5 2.5 640.0 680.5 (6.0
Total net position $ 46040 $ 46085 $ 319 $ 331 $ 4,635.9 $ 4,641.6 (0.1)

*  Governmental activities, business-type activities, and the total columns’ assets, liabilities, and net position amounts were adjusted in
2013 for beginning balance adjustments as a result of the change in presentation of the Housing Authority Fund from a special
revenue fund to an Enterprise Fund and for corrections of prior periods. See Note 4 — Beginning Balances Restated for additional
information.

By far, the largest portion - $3.5 billion or 74.5 percent - of the County’s net position reflects the
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment,
infrastructure and construction in progress), less accumulated depreciation and any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. Net position invested in capital assets increased by $115.9
million due to an increase in net capital assets of $99.7 million and a decrease in capital related debt of
$16.2 million. The decrease in capital related debt was a result of regularly scheduled debt service
payments. The increase in capital assets is mainly attributed to an increase in buildings and
improvements of $54.6 million as a result of projects completed during the fiscal year for the Sheriff's
Headquarters Building and related information technology infrastructure of $41.3 million and other
information technology improvement projects of $21.5 million. The remaining increase is due to an
increase in Transportation Department infrastructure-related land of $26.9 million.

The County uses capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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The second component of the County’s total net position, $544.4 million or approximately 11.7 percent,
represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. This component
decreased by $81.1 million from the prior year. This decrease can be attributed to expenses exceeding
revenues for the fiscal year. Primarily, this decrease in restricted net position can be attributed to
expenses related to capital projects in the Detention Capital Projects and Detention Technology Capital
Projects funds. This does not result in a true decrease in net position as these expenses resulted in an
increase in construction in progress and capital asset-related net position.

The final component consists of unrestricted net position, $640.0 million or 13.8 percent, and may be
used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations. Unrestricted net position decreased from fiscal year 2013
by $40.5 million. This decrease is primarily a result of expenses for capital projects in the General Fund
County Improvements and Technology Capital Projects funds, both unrestricted funds. This does not
result in a true decrease in net position as these expenses resulted in an increase in construction in
progress and capital asset-related net position.

Changes in Net Position

As discussed previously, the County’s total net position of $4.6 billion decreased by ($5.7) million as
reported in the Statement of Activities. The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Activities
of the County for the fiscal year 2014 compared to the prior year and indicates the changes in net position
for governmental activities:

Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30

(in millions)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total % Chg
2014 2013* 2014 2013* 2014 2013* PIY

Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 246.9 $ 257.7 $ 6.7 $ 20 $ 253.6 $ 259.7 (2.3)%

Operating grants and contributions 259.1 249.3 15.5 22.1 274.6 271.4 1.2

Capital grants and contributions 49.6 45.8 1.4 4.4 51.0 50.2 1.6
General revenues:

Taxes 1,201.8 1,189.4 1,201.8 1,189.4 1.0

Other 29.3 26.9 0.2 0.1 29.5 27.0 9.3
Total Revenues 1,786.7 1,769.1 23.8 28.6 1,810.5 1,797.7 0.7
Expenses:

General government 208.0 186.4 208.0 186.4 11.6

Public safety 1,009.5 934.2 1,009.5 934.2 8.1

Highways and streets 87.0 82.8 87.0 82.8 5.1

Health, welfare and sanitation 403.9 406.1 403.9 406.1 (0.5)

Other** 82.8 67.1 82.8 67.1 23.4

Housing Authority 25.0 26.4 25.0 26.4 (5.3)
Total Expenses 1,791.2 1,676.6 25.0 26.4 1,816.2 1,703.0 6.6
Change in net position (4.5) 92.5 1.2) 2.2 (5.7 94.7 (106.0)
Net position — beginning, as restated 4,608.5 4,516.0 33.1 30.9 4,641.6 4,546.9 2.1
Net position — ending $4,604.0 $4,608.5 $ 319 $ 33.1 $ 4,635.9 $ 4,641.6 0.1)

*  Governmental activities, business-type activities, and total columns’ amounts were adjusted in 2013 for beginning balance
adjustments as a result of the change in presentation of the Housing Authority Fund from a special revenue fund to an Enterprise
Fund and for corrections of prior periods. See Note 4 — Beginning Balances Restated for additional information.

**  The functions of culture and recreation, education, and interest on long-term debt are shown in the condensed Statement of
Activities above as other expenses.

One of the main differences a reader will see between the governmental funds reported in the fund
financial statements and the Statement of Activities is that governmental funds in the fund financial
statements report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of
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those assets is reported as a capital asset and the expense of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense within the expenditure line items. Capital
outlay expenditures exceeded depreciation expense in the current period by $112.1 million.

In the government-wide Statement of Activities, the significant revenues reported included taxes (County-
levied, general sales, and vehicle license taxes), charges for services, and operating grants and
contributions, which represent 66.4, 14.0, and 15.2 percent, respectively, of total governmental activities
revenues for fiscal year 2014. Tax revenues in total increased $12.4 million primarily as a result of an
increase in sales, special assessment, surcharge, and vehicle license tax revenues of $46.3 million,
which was offset by a decrease in property tax revenues of $34.9 million. The decline in property taxes
was expected and included in the budgeting plan as the fiscal year 2014, property tax revenue was
budgeted at approximately $30 million less than the prior year. This decrease is a result of two factors, a
decrease in the overall County controlled tax rate and continued lag in property tax assessed values.
Although the economy is improving, property tax assessed values remain low as there is a lag period
between the actual decline in assessed value and when that decline is recognized for the assessed
valuation used for the property tax rate and levy. The increase in sales tax revenue is a result of the
improving economy. Charges for services revenue decreased $6.1 million as a result of a decrease in
Transportation Capital Projects Fund charges for services revenue of $4.6 million due to a decrease in
intergovernmental charges for services revenue. Operating grants revenue increased $3.2 million from
the prior year primarily as a result of increases in revenue in the School Grants Fund of $6.5 million as a
result of increased grant revenues received for the Teacher Incentive Fund of $7.7 million. This grant
revenue was offset by a decrease in the Human Services Grants Fund of $2.9 million as a result of
decreases in the Workforce Investment Act Cluster of grant programs of $2.7 million as a result of
reduced funding.

Tax and other operating revenues provide the principal support for the functions of the County, which
include general government; public safety; highways and streets; health, welfare and sanitation; culture
and recreation; and education. Total expenses increased $113.3 million or 6.7 percent from the prior
fiscal year. This increase is primarily a result of an increase in general government and public safety
function expenses of $21.6 million and $75.3 million, respectively. The increase in general government is
due to an increase of $18.5 million in loss and loss expenses in the Employee Benefits Trust Fund as a
result of large medical claims. The increase in public safety is primarily a result of retention pay and
market range salary adjustments in public safety personnel. No other significant expenditure shifts
occurred in fiscal year 2014.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. In order to provide comparative discussion of fund balances to the prior year,
the analysis below of ‘spendable’ balance represents restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned
fund balance.

Governmental Funds. Governmental activities are contained in the general, special revenue, debt
service, and capital projects funds. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular, spendable fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of June 30, 2014, the governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $1,237.4 million which
was a decrease in fund balance of $119.3 million from the prior fiscal year. Approximately 98.2 percent of
the combined fund balances or $1,215.3 million is available to meet the County’s current and future
needs (spendable fund balance). The remaining fund balance is reserved for inventories and
intergovernmental loans.
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The following funds are the County’s major governmental funds:

General Fund

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, spendable
fund balance of the General Fund was $121.2 million, while total fund balance was $141.0 million. This
represents a decrease in the spendable fund balance from the prior year of $137.5 million, or 53.1
percent. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both spendable fund
balance and total fund balance to the total fund expenditures. Spendable fund balance represents 13.8
percent of the total fiscal year 2014 General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 16.0
percent of that same amount. These ratios indicate a strong fund balance position in comparison to
expenditures, taking into account that Maricopa County operates on a structurally balanced budget in
that fiscal year 2015 operating expenditures are expected to be fully funded by fiscal year 2015 revenues.

During fiscal year 2014, the General Fund experienced a change in fund balance of ($136.9) million, an
increase of $111.8 million from the prior fiscal year change in fund balance of ($25.1) million. While
revenues stayed flat in comparison to prior year, operating transfers out increased $83.7 million and
expenditures increased $39.9 million. The increase in operating transfers out is a result of additional
budgeted transfers to the capital projects funds. The increase in expenditures is a result of retention pay
and market range salary adjustments for public safety departments.

Detention Operations Fund

The Detention Operations Fund is a special revenue fund that was established under the authority of
propositions 400 and 401, which were passed in the General Election of November 3, 1998. These
propositions authorized a temporary 1/5 of one-cent sales tax to be used for the construction and
operation of adult and juvenile detention facilities. On November 5, 2002, the voters approved the
extension of the 1/5 of one-cent sales tax in the General Election to be used for jail facility operations.
The extension begins in the month following the expiration of the original tax and may continue for not
more than twenty years after the date the tax collection begins. The Detention Operations Fund accounts
for the receipt of tax revenue, jail operations expenditures, and transfers to the Detention Capital Projects
Fund and Detention Technology Capital Improvement Fund for construction of the adult and juvenile
detention facilities and detention technology infrastructure.

The Detention Operations Fund accounts for the jail tax revenue along with transfers from the General
Fund for maintenance of effort (MOE). The MOE transfer from the General Fund is used to support the jail
detention operations. Arizona Revised Statutes require the County to calculate the maintenance of effort
transfer on an annual basis. The Detention Operations Fund transfers monies to the Detention Capital
Projects Fund and Detention Technology Capital Improvement Fund for the construction of the jail and
detention facilities and detention technology infrastructure. At the end of the current fiscal year, total fund
balance of the Detention Operations Fund was $61.3 million, of which 99.9 percent is restricted and
considered spendable. This was a decrease in total fund balance of $11.9 million, or 16.3 percent from
the prior fiscal year. Although the fund had more expenditures than revenues by $178.1 million, positive
net transfers of $166.2 million offset the net loss in the fund. Operating transfers consisted of the transfer
in for MOE from the General fund of $173.9 million and transfers out to the Detention Capital Projects
Fund and Inmate Services Fund of $7.2 million and $512.9 thousand, respectively. The amount to be
transferred to the Detention Capital Projects Fund and Inmate Services Fund for any given year is
determined through the budget planning process.

County Improvement Debt Fund

The County Improvement Debt Fund is a debt service fund that accounts for the debt service on Lease
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A; and Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B. At the end of the
current fiscal year, spendable fund balance of the County Improvement Debt Fund was $19.5 million, of
which $14.5 million is restricted for debt service. This represents a decrease of $11.5 million from the
prior fiscal year and is attributed to the continued payment of debt service obligations. As no new debt
issuances occurred during the fiscal year, the primary activity in this fund is debt service payments.
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Detention Capital Projects Fund

The Detention Capital Projects Fund is a capital projects fund that accounts for construction associated
with the 1/5 of one-cent sales tax approved by voters in the General Election on November 3, 1998, and
extended by the voters on November 5, 2002. Funding is provided by transfers from the Detention
Operations Fund for construction of the adult and juvenile detention facilities. At the end of the current
fiscal year, fund balance of the Detention Capital Projects Fund was $190.2 million, all of which is
restricted and considered spendable. The fund balance in this fund decreased $24.3 million from the
prior fiscal year, which is primarily attributed to capital project expenditures for the Sheriff Headquarters
Project.

General Fund County Improvements Fund

The General Fund County Improvements Fund is a capital projects fund that accounts for capital projects
funded by transfers from the General Fund. Projects that are currently funded include justice and
administrative projects. At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance of the General Fund County
Improvements Fund was $299.9 million, all of which is committed and considered spendable. The fund
balance in this fund increased $46.6 million from the prior fiscal year as a result of net transfers of $69.6
million and capital outlay expenditures of $23.1 million. Fiscal year 2014 transfers consisted of transfers
in from the General Fund of $145.2 million, which were offset by transfers out to the Technology Capital
Improvement Fund, County Improvement Debt Fund, and General Fund of $73.5 million, $1.9 million, and
$117.0 thousand, respectively.

Technology Capital Improvement Fund

The Technology Capital Improvement Fund is a capital projects fund that accounts for technology
improvement capital projects funded by transfers from the General Fund and General Fund County
Improvements Fund. Projects that are currently funded include technology infrastructure upgrades,
administrative and detention system projects, and security and telephone system upgrades. At the end of
the current fiscal year, fund balance of the Technology Capital Improvement Fund was $236.8 million, all
of which is committed and considered spendable. The fund balance in this fund increased $36.1 million
from the prior fiscal year as a result of net transfers of $83.1 million and capital outlay expenditures of
$47.0 million. Fiscal year 2014 transfers consisted of transfers in from the General Fund and General
Fund County Improvement Fund of $11.7 and $73.4 million, respectively, which were offset by transfers
out to the General Fund of $2.0 million.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The difference between the original budget and the final amended budget for the General Fund resulted
in no significant change in revenues and expenditures. A significant favorable expenditure variance, as
compared to the budget, was incurred in the Non-Departmental Department (general government
function), Facilities Management Department (general government function), and Sheriff's Department
(public safety function) of $23.2 million, $11.2 million, and $7.5 million, respectively. These savings were
a result of the Non- Departmental Department spending less contingency funds than was anticipated, the
Facilities Management Department incurring less major maintenance expenditures, and the Sheriff’'s
Department incurring less personnel cost than was anticipated. None of the variances between the
budget and actual amounts were significant enough to affect the County’s ability to provide future
services.

Capital Assets and Long-Term Liabilities

Capital Assets

The County’s capital assets balance for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2014, was $3.6 billion (net of accumulated depreciation). Capital assets include land, buildings and
improvements, infrastructure, machinery and equipment, and construction in progress. The County
reports infrastructure assets, which consist of the Flood Control District and Transportation Department
infrastructure, in the government-wide financial statements in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34.
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Additional information regarding infrastructure assets can be found in the Notes to the Financial
Statements (Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Note 12 — Capital Assets).

The Flood Control District infrastructure assets consist of drainage systems, dams, flood channels and
canals. Flood Control infrastructure is reported using the depreciation approach and the County uses the
straight-line method of depreciation on these assets. At June 30, 2014, Flood Control District
infrastructure-related assets consisted of land, infrastructure and construction in progress of $254.3,
$178.9, and $215.8 million, respectively, net of any related accumulated depreciation.

The Transportation Department infrastructure assets consist of a roadway system and a bridge system.
Both systems are reported under the modified approach, which means the County will maintain the
assets using an asset management system and will document that the infrastructure assets are being
preserved at the established condition level. During fiscal year 2014, the condition level of both systems
was within the established condition level. Actual maintenance/preservation costs varied by $2,336,288
and $234,176 from the estimated costs for the roadway and bridge system, respectively. Roadway and
Bridge System maintenance is predicated by the Federal clearance process. Additionally, bids on
roadway projects were more favorable than estimated resulting in a positive variance in the actual costs
under the estimated. See Required Supplementary Information on page 79 for additional information. At
June 30, 2014, Transportation Department infrastructure-related assets consisted of land, infrastructure
and construction in progress of $368.4, $715.6, and $81.8 million, respectively.

Capital assets for governmental activities are presented below (in millions) to illustrate changes from the
prior year:

%

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Chg
2014 2013* 2014 2013* 2014 2013* P/Y
Land $754.2 $728.5 $4.7 $4.7 $758.9 $733.2 35
Infrastructure 715.6 702.8 715.6 702.8 1.8
Buildings and improvements (net of
accumulated depreciation) 1,405.6 1,349.6 26.6 28.0 1,432.2 1,377.6 4.0
Machinery and equipment
(net of accumulated depreciation) 93.2 94.1 0.3 0.4 93.5 94.5 (1.1)
Construction in progress 385.3 375.0 1.9 387.2 375.0 3.3
Infrastructure (net of accumulated
depreciation) 178.9 183.5 178.9 183.5 (2.5)
Totals $3,532.8 $3,433.5 $33.5 $33.1 $3,566.3 $3,466.6 2.9

*  Governmental activities, business-type activities, and the total columns’ capital asset amounts were adjusted in 2013 for beginning
balance adjustments as a result of the change in presentation of the Housing Authority Fund from a special revenue fund to an
Enterprise Fund and for corrections of prior periods. See Note 4 — Beginning Balances Restated for additional information.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $99.7 million, or 2.9 percent, from the prior
year. The most significant impact on the increase in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2014, was the increase in buildings and improvements and land of $54.6 and $25.7 million, respectively,
from the prior fiscal year. The increase in buildings and improvements is primarily due to projects
completed during the fiscal year for the Sheriffs Headquarters Building and related information
technology infrastructure of $41.3 million and other information technology improvement projects of $21.5
million. The remaining increase is due to an increase in Transportation Department infrastructure-related
land of $26.9 million. Transportation Department infrastructure-related assets increased a total of $12.8
million and Flood Control District infrastructure-related assets decreased by ($4.6) million from the prior
year and accounted for changes in land, construction in progress, and infrastructure of $26.6, $43.2, and
$8.2 million, respectively.
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Long-Term Liabilities

Maricopa County has the following bond ratings:

Debt Instrument & Rating Agency Rating Date Awarded
General Obligation Bonds (implied or issuer credit rating)

Standard & Poor’s AAA January 2014
Lease Revenue Bonds
Standard & Poor’s AA+ January 2014

At June 30, 2014, the County had total long-term liabilities (noncurrent liabilities due within one year and
more than one year) outstanding of $222.1 million, which represents a $29.5 million decrease from the
prior year balance of $251.6 million. The majority of the decrease is attributable to debt service payments
made during fiscal year 2014 for lease revenue bonds ($11.4 million), and Stadium District loans ($5.7
million), a net decrease of Stadium District revenue bonds ($3.2 million) and reported and incurred but not
reported claims ($8.0 million). The largest components of long-term liabilities at June 30, 2014, consisted
of lease revenue bonds of $109.0 million, Stadium District revenue bonds of $19.3 million, and reported
claims and incurred but not reported claims of $77.1 million.

Lease revenue bonds applicable to governmental activities are paid from the County Improvement Debt
Fund (debt service fund), which is funded by transfers from the General Fund. At June 30, 2014, the fund
balance in the County Improvement Debt Fund to pay future liabilities was $19.5 million.

Stadium District revenue bonds are special obligations of the District. The bonds are payable solely from
pledged revenues, consisting of car rental surcharges levied and collected by the Stadium District
pursuant to A.R.S. 848-4234. In September 2012, the Stadium District issued revenue refunding bonds in
the amount of $25.1 million (par value) of which $19.3 million remains outstanding.

Reported and incurred but not reported claims applicable to governmental activities of $77.1 million are
reported in the Risk Management and Employee Benefits Trust funds (internal service funds). This is a
decrease of $8.0 million from the prior year as noted above. This liability is primarily related to actuarial
estimates for the County’s self-insured portion of future claims for general litigation related to torts; thefts
of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; natural disasters;
and certain health benefits that are paid through the operations of the funds. Additional information
regarding long-term liabilities can be found in the Notes to Financial Statements (Note 14 — Long-Term
Liabilities and Note 18 — Risk Management).

On December 10, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved a Declaration of Intent to issue tax exempt
securities for reimbursement of expenditures related to the acquisition of equipment and/or capital
purchases from the five year capital projects schedule. The maximum principal amount of obligation
expected to be issued is $266.1 million. This Declaration of Intent does not represent the actual
authorization to issue bonds, but gives the County the ability to reimburse authorized expenditures with
tax exempt bond proceeds. A separate Board approval is required for the actual bond issuance.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

e Arizona’s economic growth slowed during the Spring of 2014, with job growth falling back to the
U.S. average. Nonetheless, the state economy continues to expand and growth is likely to
continue as long as the nation avoids recession. The forecast calls for state growth to pick up
speed during fiscal years 2015-2017, with gains across most indicators far exceeding national
results (www.eller.arizona.edu).

e The U.S. Census Bureau reports that Maricopa County’s population increased by 1.7 percent
from fiscal year 2012 to 2013 (www.census.gov). The unemployment rate in Maricopa County in
September 2014 was 5.8 percent, which remains below both the state and national average of
6.9 percent and 5.9 percent, respectively (www.laborstats.az.gov).
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

e As reported by the U.S. Census Bureau, Maricopa County’s population increased 18.8 percent
from 2003 to 2013, which is higher than the United States’ overall population increase of 8.7
percent for the same time period (www.census.gov).

As part of the annual budget planning process, the County’s Office of Management and Budget
developed a financial forecast to assist in both short and long range financial planning. This forecast
provides a conservative estimate of the County’s fiscal condition through the next five years given a
realistic economic forecast, current County policies and existing laws. The forecast was instrumental in
the determination of the fiscal year 2015 budget and tax rate, which took into account several significant
trends:

o Net assessed property tax valuations increased in fiscal year 2015; however, the growth rate of
net assessed valuations will be constrained beginning fiscal year 2016 for most property types
due to the passage of Proposition 117, which caps the year-over-year property tax valuation
increase to the lesser of the full cash value or 5 percent.

e The primary property tax rate for fiscal years 2016 thought 2019 will adjust annually to a rate that
retains a positive fund balance in the General Fund, resulting in a nearly flat tax rate during these
years.

o In fiscal year 2015, annual collections of State Shared Sales Tax, Vehicle License Tax, Highway
User Revenues and County Jail Excise Tax revenues are anticipated to return to the peak level of
collections in fiscal year 2007. Subsequent yearly growth rates are expected to decrease and
average 5 percent from fiscal year 2016 through 2019.

In accordance with A.R.S., the entire General Fund spendable fund balance amount (see page 10 for
more information) will be budgeted in the next fiscal year. A.R.S. 842-17151 requires that total estimated
sources of revenue must equal the total estimated expenditures in the budget for the current fiscal year.
The estimated expenditures may include an amount for unanticipated contingencies or emergencies, per
A.R.S. 8§42-17102.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with
a general overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the County’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information,
please contact Maricopa County Department of Finance, 301 W. Jefferson, Suite 960, Phoenix,
AZ 85003, or at www.maricopa.gov.
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Maricopa County
Definitions of Government-wide Financial Statements and
Listing of Major Funds

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of Maricopa County’s assets and deferred
outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two
reported as net position.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

The above two statements are presented utilizing the following types of activities:

Governmental Activities — generally are financed through taxes and intergovernmental revenues.

Business-type Activities — are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

Major Funds

General Fund — is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds

Detention Operations Fund — was established under the authority of propositions 400 and 401, which
were passed in the General Election of November 3, 1998. These propositions authorized a temporary
1/5 of one-cent sales tax to be used for the construction and operation of adult and juvenile detention
facilities. On November 5, 2002, the voters approved the extension of the 1/5 of one-cent sales tax in the
General Election to be used for jail facility operations. The extension begins in the month following the
expiration of the original tax and may continue for not more than twenty years after the date the tax
collection begins. The Detention Operations Fund accounts for the receipt of tax revenue, jail operations
expenditures, and transfers to the Detention Capital Projects Fund and Detention Technology Capital
Improvement Fund for construction of the adult and juvenile detention facilities and detention technology
infrastructure.

Debt Service Funds

County Improvement Debt Fund — accounts for the debt service on the Lease Revenue Bonds, Series
2007A; and Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B.

Capital Projects Funds

Detention Capital Projects Fund — accounts for construction associated with the 1/5 of one-cent sales
tax approved by voters in the General Election on November 3, 1998, and extended by voters on
November 5, 2002. Funding is provided by transfers from the Detention Operations Fund for construction
of the adult and juvenile detention facilities.

General Fund County Improvements Fund — was established to fund current and future capital
projects. Fund assets may be used to pay directly for capital projects or may be appropriated by the
Board of Supervisors for debt service. None of the funds has been pledged for debt service, and fund
assets may be transferred by the Board of Supervisors at any time for any other County purpose.

Technology Capital Improvement Fund - established by the Board of Supervisors to account for
General Fund and other resources committed for technology improvement projects.

Enterprise Funds
Housing Authority Fund — accounts for the activity of the Housing Authority of Maricopa County.
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Maricopa County

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

ASSETS
Cash in bank and on hand
Cash and investments held by County Treasurer
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
Due from other governmental units
Inventories
Prepaids
Miscellaneous
Intergovernmental loans
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted
Cash and investments held by trustee — restricted
Capital assets:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure — nondepreciable
Infrastructure — depreciable
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on debt refunding
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Employee compensation payable
Interest payable
Unearned revenue
Advances
Deposits held for other parties
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Health, welfare and sanitation
Culture and recreation
Education
Debt service

Unrestricted
Total net position

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 29,701,654 $ 2,612,708 $ 32,314,362
1,187,537,737 1,187,537,737
19,227,413 794,312 20,021,725
168,158,614 168,158,614
8,965,806 57,634 9,023,440
4,569,793 57,611 4,627,404
2,234,903 2,234,903
16,351,094 16,351,094
3,177,669 3,177,669
39,532,795 39,532,795
754,229,626 4,737,544 758,967,170
1,874,200,974 68,090,653 1,942,291,627
366,712,855 1,170,073 367,882,928
715,579,904 715,579,904
272,688,101 272,688,101
385,295,337 1,853,543 387,148,880
(835,869,129) (42,315,190) (878,184,319)
5,009,117,477 40,236,557 5,049,354,034
523,477 523,477
523,477 523,477
74,492,022 1,279,033 75,771,055
11,286,386 211,595 11,497,981
91,386,315 94,790 91,481,105
2,476,074 50,624 2,526,698
6,981,756 92,490 7,074,246
49,423 49,423
3,170,352 208,362 3,378,714
48,024,503 66,373 48,090,876
167,749,224 6,307,558 174,056,782
405,616,055 8,310,825 413,926,880
3,423,302,960 28,227,151 3,451,530,111
3,920,999 3,920,999
377,446,517 377,446,517
75,747,721 75,747,721
25,470,433 2,199,816 27,670,249
37,700,793 37,700,793
3,053,137 3,053,137
18,915,251 18,915,251
638,467,088 1,498,765 639,965,853
$4,604,024,899 $ 31,925,732 $4,635,950,631

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Maricopa County
Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Functions/Programs
Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government $ 207,955,003 $ 24,448,700 $ 12,511,475 $ $ (170,994,828) $ $ (170,994,828)

Public safety 1,009,516,114 140,384,054 27,718,961 4,332,904 (837,080,195) (837,080,195)

Highways and streets 87,024,827 15,534,823 90,064,274 45,223,314 63,797,584 63,797,584

Health, welfare and sanitation 403,901,208 51,138,425 106,952,511 (245,810,272) (245,810,272)

Culture and recreation 50,968,956 14,943,535 313,425 13,389 (35,698,607) (35,698,607)

Education 26,684,832 465,823 21,552,304 (4,666,705) (4,666,705)

Interest on long-term debt 5,237,255 (5,237,255) (5,237,255)

Total governmental activities 1,791,288,195 246,915,360 259,112,950 49,569,607 (1,235,690,278) (1,235,690,278)
Business-type activities:

Housing Authority 25,070,360 6,741,213 15,529,154 1,440,065 (1,359,928) (1,359,928)
Total business-type activities 25,070,360 6,741,213 15,529,154 1,440,065 (1,359,928) (1,359,928)
Total primary government $1,816,358,555 $253,656,573 $274,642,104 $51,009,672 (1,235,690,278) (1,359,928) (1,237,050,206)

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 429,235,095 429,235,095
Property taxes, levied for Flood Control District 39,287,012 39,287,012
Property taxes, levied for Library District 14,246,516 14,246,516
Property taxes, levied for Street Lighting District 6,070,638 6,070,638
Share of state sales taxes 447,541,942 447,541,942
Sales tax — Jail construction and operation 133,929,831 133,929,831
Surcharge tax — Stadium District 5,394,707 5,394,707
Share of state vehicle license tax 126,137,174 126,137,174

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 3,011,264 3,011,264

Unrestricted investment earnings 2,150,743 89 2,150,832

Miscellaneous 24,138,258 164,356 24,302,614
Total general revenues 1,231,143,180 164,445 1,231,307,625

Change in net position (4,547,098) (1,195,483) (5,742,581)
Net position, July 1, 2013, as restated 4,608,571,997 33,121,215 4,641,693,212
$4,604,024,899 $ 31,925,732 $4,635,950,631

Net position, June 30, 2014

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Maricopa County
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2014

ASSETS

Cash in bank and on hand

Cash and investments held by County Treasurer

Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)

Due from other funds

Due from other governmental units

Inventories

Miscellaneous

Intergovernmental loans

Cash and investments held by trustee — restricted
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Employee compensation payable
Accrued liabilities

Due to other funds

Interest payable

Bonds payable

Special assessment debt with governmental commitment

Advances

Unearned revenue

Deposits held for other parties
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue — property tax

Unavailable revenue — intergovernmental
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and

fund balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Detention County
General Operations Improvement Debt
26,087,885 $ $
28,965,929 47,359,527 4,997,993
10,663,487 261,665
10,159,725
86,131,500 26,719,715 2,088,210
4,770,325 70,558
481,111 605,876
16,351,094
28,761,969
183,611,056 $ 75,017,341 $ 35,848,172
22,517,405 $ 5,217,707 $
10,819,556 4,579,990
582,514 2,795,951
2,437,590
11,840,000
49,423
276,367
34,245,265 12,593,648 14,277,590
7,041,638
1,351,094 1,094,741 2,088,210
8,392,732 1,094,741 2,088,210
19,770,325 70,558
61,258,394 14,484,379
4,997,993
113,712,308
7,490,426
140,973,059 61,328,952 19,482,372
183,611,056 $ 75,017,341 $ 35,848,172

Some receivables are not available to pay for current period expenditures and therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of equipment services, telecommunications, reprographics, risk management,

employee benefits, and the sheriff warehouse to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in

governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position.

Some deferred outflows, long-term liabilities and compensated absences are not due and payable shortly after June 30, 2014, and therefore,

are not reported in the funds
Net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Detention General Fund Technology Other Total
Capital County Capital Governmental Governmental
Projects Improvements Improvement Funds Funds

835,566 $ 26,923,451

190,391,971 301,187,443 246,363,176 282,822,070 1,102,088,109

1,491,744 12,416,896

10,159,725

53,219,189 168,158,614

2,216,556 7,057,439

1,147,916 2,234,903

16,351,094

10,770,826 39,532,795

190,391,971 301,187,443 246,363,176 352,503,867 $  1,384,923,026

103,671 998,179 9,603,332 32,464,313 $ 70,904,607

3,808,445 19,207,991

3,417,776 6,796,241

9,694,397 9,694,397

1,890 2,439,480

11,840,000

4,339 4,339

49,423

6,981,756 6,981,756

46,359 256,079 2,591,547 3,170,352

150,030 1,254,258 9,603,332 58,964,463 131,088,586

583,489 7,625,127

4,313,988 8,848,033

4,897,477 16,473,160

2,216,556 22,057,439

190,241,941 275,975,742 541,960,456

299,933,185 236,759,844 12,835,482 554,526,504

113,712,308

(2,385,853) 5,104,573

190,241,941 299,933,185 236,759,844 288,641,927 1,237,361,280
190,391,971 301,187,443 246,363,176 352,503,867

3,528,786,434

16,473,160

18,656,279

(197,252,254)
$  4,604,024,899
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Maricopa County

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Detention County
General Operations Improvement Debt
REVENUES
Taxes $ 422,074,283 133,929,831 $
Licenses and permits 2,745,683
Intergovernmental 592,086,027 1,127,899
Charges for services 39,288,109 27,148,722 2,081,427
Fines and forfeits 11,779,626
Special assessments
Interest income 475,529 122,020 74,540
Miscellaneous 8,191,440 781,004
Total revenues 1,076,640,697 163,109,476 2,155,967
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 127,650,242
Public safety 485,672,799 338,199,923
Highways and streets
Health, welfare and sanitation 249,104,319
Culture and recreation 2,410,970
Education 3,468,762
Debt service:
Principal 11,840,000
Interest 4,875,180
Other expenses
Capital outlay 12,648,247 2,979,351
Total expenditures 880,955,339 341,179,274 16,715,180
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 195,685,358 (178,069,798) (14,559,213)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2,137,750 173,981,440 3,082,630
Transfers out (335,306,799) (7,761,018)
Total other financing sources (uses) (333,169,049) 166,220,422 3,082,630
Net change in fund balances (137,483,691) (11,849,376) (11,476,583)
Fund balances, July 1, 2013, as restated 277,830,627 73,179,418 30,958,955
Changes in nonspendable resources:
Increase (decrease) in inventories 626,123 (1,090)
Fund balances, June 30, 2014 $ 140,973,059 61,328,952 $ 19,482,372

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Detention General Fund Technology Other Total
Capital County Capital Governmental Governmental
Projects Improvements Improvement Funds Funds

$ $ 59,123,121 $ 615,127,235
41,549,380 44,295,063

130,384 286,546,440 879,890,750

89,899,796 158,418,054

17,202,089 28,981,715

6,070,638 6,070,638

356,894 1,028,983

7,913,831 16,886,275

130,384 508,662,189 1,750,698,713

8,020,499 135,670,741

136,145,229 960,017,951

51,635,626 51,635,626

151,177,977 400,282,296

34,525,962 36,936,932

23,038,093 26,506,855

8,902,071 20,742,071

516,001 5,391,181

1,250 1,250

6,576,425 23,147,414 46,960,595 136,447,065 228,759,097
6,576,425 23,147,414 46,960,595 550,409,773 1,865,944,000
(6,576,425) (23,017,030) (46,960,595) (41,747,584) (115,245,287)
7,248,089 145,164,013 85,111,435 100,104,867 516,830,224
(25,000,001) (75,531,121) (2,020,000) (75,677,793) (521,296,732)
(17,751,912) 69,632,892 83,091,435 24,427,074 (4,466,508)
(24,328,337) 46,615,862 36,130,840 (17,320,510) (119,711,795)
214,570,278 253,317,323 200,629,004 306,126,009 1,356,611,614
(163,572) 461,461

$ 190,241,941 299,933,185 236,759,844 $ 288,641,927 $  1,237,361,280
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Maricopa County

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the

Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net change in fund balances — total governmental funds (page 25)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities on
page 21 are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets is
to decrease net position.

Collections of certain revenues in the governmental funds exceeded revenues
reported in the Statement of Activities.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred
and amortized in the Statement of Activities. This amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
equipment services, telecommunications, reprographics, risk management,
employee benefits, and the sheriff warehouse to individual funds. The net
expense of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities (page 21)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ (119,711,795)

112,108,083

(11,935,502)

(748,055)

20,230,750

(2,241,492)

(2,249,087)

$ (4,547,098)
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Maricopa County
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2014

Business-type

Activities — Governmental
Enterprise Fund Activities —
Internal Service
Housing Authority Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash in bank and on hand $ 2,612,708 $ 2,778,203
Cash and investments held by County Treasurer 85,449,628
Receivables:
Accounts 794,312 6,702,546
Accrued interest 107,971
Inventories 57,634 1,908,367
Prepaids 57,611 4,569,793
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted 3,177,669
Total current assets 6,699,934 101,516,508
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land 4,737,544
Buildings and improvements 68,090,653
Machinery and equipment 1,170,073 15,110,259
Construction in progress 1,853,543
Accumulated depreciation (42,315,190) (11,059,025)
Total noncurrent assets 33,536,623 4,051,234
Total assets 40,236,557 105,567,742
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,279,033 3,587,415
Employee compensation payable 94,790 1,221,119
Accrued liabilities 262,219 4,490,145
Unearned revenue 92,490
Deposits held for other parties 208,362
Due to other funds 465,328
Liability for reported and incurred but not reported claims (current portion) 30,763,988
Long-term debt (current portion) 66,373
Total current liabilities 2,003,267 40,527,995
Noncurrent liabilities:
Liability for reported and incurred but not reported claims 46,383,468
Long-term debt 6,307,558
Total noncurrent liabilities 6,307,558 46,383,468
Total liabilities 8,310,825 86,911,463
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 28,227,151 4,051,234
Restricted for health, welfare, and sanitation 2,199,816
Unrestricted 1,498,765 14,605,045
Total net position $ 31,925,732 $ 18,656,279

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Maricopa County
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Business-type

Activities — Governmental
Enterprise Fund Activities —
_— Internal Service
Housing Authority Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 6,741,213 $ 187,014,743
Intergovernmental 15,529,154
Miscellaneous 164,356 5,476,337
Total operating revenues 22,434,723 192,491,080
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 2,800,411 13,042,007
Supplies 17,031,934
Other services 628,581 11,307,650
Housing assistance payments 15,889,813
Legal 6,112,202
Insurance and claims 330,157 140,646,316
Leases and rentals 61,346
Repairs and maintenance 2,212,451 2,182,431
Travel and transportation 142,509
Utilities 980,725 7,799,543
Depreciation 1,910,856 1,174,966
Total operating expenses 24,752,994 199,500,904
Operating loss (2,318,271) (7,009,824)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 89 219,689
Loss on disposal of capital assets (2,431) (2,466)
Premium refund 3,450,568
Return of contributions (3,423,209)
Interest expense (240,156)
Other expense (74,779)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (317,277) 244,582
Loss before contributions and transfers (2,635,548) (6,765,242)
Capital contributions 1,440,065 49,647
Transfers in 4,466,508
Change in net position (1,195,483) (2,249,087)
Total net position, July 1, 2013, as restated 33,121,215 20,905,366
Total net position, June 30, 2014 $ 31925732  $ 18,656,279

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Maricopa County
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Charges for services
Other receipts
Payments for goods and services
Payments for personal services and benefits
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds
Loan payments to General Fund
Operating net asset adjustment premium refund
Premium refund
Return of contributions
Payments on long-term debt
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of capital assets
Capital grants received
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Payments on long-term debt
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest and dividends
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2013

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2014

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY

(USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by

(used for) operating activities:
Depreciation expense

Liability for reported and incurred but not reported claims - noncurrent

Changes in assets [(increase)/decrease] and liabilities [increase/(decrease)]:

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaids

Other assets

Accounts payable

Employee compensation payable

Accrued liabilities

Long-term debt

Liability for reported and incurred but not reported claims - current
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Accumulated depreciation from disposed capital assets
Machinery and equipment disposed
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Capital assets transferred from governmental activities
Capital contributions

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-type
Activities —

Enterprise Fund

Housing Authority

Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Funds

$ 22,651,452 $ 181,694,799
102,212 5,476,337
(20,274,793) (198,653,831)
(2,134,104) (12,889,485)
344,767 (24,372,180)
4,466,508
(17,983)
4,947,028
3,450,568
(3,423,209)
(11,552)
(11,552) 9,422,912
(2,387,360) (288,692)
923,709
1,931,909
(26,441)
441,817 (288,692)
86,078 239,732
86,078 239,732
861,110 (14,998,228)
4,929,267 103,226,059
$ 5,790,377 $ 88,227,831
$ (2,318,271) $ (7,009,824)
1,910,856 1,174,966
1,426,469
262,578 (5,319,944)
62,131 (387,887)
(152,704)
(4,760)
438,718 303,818
152,522
36,766 (5,127,518)
(66,421)
(9,432,078)
23,170
$ 344,767 $ (24,372,180)
$ 16,520 $ 370,763
(18,951) (373,229)
2,431 2,466
49,647
(49,647)
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Maricopa County

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2014

Assets
Cash and investments in bank and on hand
Cash and investments held by County Treasurer
Accrued interest receivable
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits held for other parties
Total liabilities

Net Position
Held in trust for investment participants

Investment Agency
Trust Fund Fund
$ 29,875,467
2,271,990,938 742,557
1,961,561
2,273,952,499 30,618,024
57,036
334,944
30,226,044
30,618,024
$ 2,273,952,499

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Maricopa County

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Additions:
Contributions from participants
Investment income:
Interest income
Net change in fair value of investments
Net investment income
Total additions

Deductions:
Distributions to participants
Total deductions

Change in net position

Net position, July 1, 2013
Net position, June 30, 2014

Investment
Trust Fund

9,960,452,709

7,057,043
(7,273,017)

(215,974)

9,960,236,735

9,998,233,002

9,998,233,002

(37,996,267)

2,311,948,766

$

2,273,952,499

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Maricopa County’s accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles applicable to
governmental units adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the County implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 65,
Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. GASB Statement No. 65 reclassifies certain items
that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as deferred outflows of resources or deferred
inflows of resources and recognizes certain other items that were previously reported as assets and
liabilities as revenues or expenses.

A.

Reporting Entity

Maricopa County is a general purpose local government that is governed by a separately elected
board of five county supervisors. The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the
County (the primary government) and its component units.

Component units are legally separate entities for which the County is considered to be financially
accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are so intertwined with the
County that they are in substance part of the County’s operations. Component units should be
blended in the County’s financial statements when the component unit's governing body is
substantively the same as the County’s governing body and there is either a financial benefit or
burden relationship between the County and the component unit or county management has
operational responsibility for it; the component unit provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to
the County; or the component unit’s total debt outstanding is expected to be repaid entirely or almost
entirely with the County’s resources. Therefore, data from these units is combined with data of the
primary government. Discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are reported in a
separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate
from the County. Maricopa County does not report any discretely presented component units. Each
blended component unit discussed below has a June 30 year-end.

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, Maricopa County Flood Control District,
Maricopa County Library District, Maricopa County Public Finance Corporation, Maricopa County
Special Assessment Districts, Maricopa County Stadium District, Maricopa County Street Lighting
Districts, and Housing Authority of Maricopa County.

The blended component units are as follows:

Maricopa County Flood Control District

The Maricopa County Flood Control District is a legally separate, tax-levying entity pursuant to A.R.S.
8§48-3602 that provides flood control facilities and regulates floodplains and drainage to prevent
flooding of property in Maricopa County. As the Maricopa County Board of Supervisors serves as the
Board of Directors of the Flood Control District, it is able to significantly influence the programs,
projects, activities, or level of services provided by the District; therefore, the District is considered a
blended component unit of the County.

Maricopa County Library District

The Maricopa County Library District is a legally separate, tax-levying entity pursuant to A.R.S. §48-
3901 that provides and maintains library services for the residents of Maricopa County. As the
Maricopa County Board of Supervisors serves as the Board of Directors of the Library District, it is
able to significantly influence the programs, projects, activities, or level of services provided by the
District; therefore, the District is considered a blended component unit of the County.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Continued)

Maricopa County Public Finance Corporation

Maricopa County Public Finance Corporation is a nonprofit corporation created by the Maricopa
County Board of Supervisors that exists primarily to assist the County in the acquisition, construction,
and improvement of County facilities, including real property and personal property. The Board of
Directors of the Public Finance Corporation is subject to the approval of the County Board of
Supervisors and the corporation exists primarily for the benefit of the County; therefore, the
Corporation is considered a blended component unit of the County. The Corporation has issued
lease revenue bonds on behalf of the County. Since this debt is in substance the County’s obligation,
these liabilities and resulting assets are reported on the County’s financial statements.

Maricopa County Special Assessment Districts

The Maricopa County Special Assessment Districts are legally separate entities that provide
improvements to various properties within the County. As the Maricopa County Board of Supervisors
serves as the Board of Directors of the Special Assessment Districts, it is able to significantly
influence the activities or level of services provided by the Districts; therefore, the Districts are
considered a blended component unit of the County.

Maricopa County Stadium District

The Maricopa County Stadium District is a legally separate entity pursuant to A.R.S. §48-4202 that
provides regional leadership and fiscal resources to assure the presence of Major League Baseball in
Maricopa County. As the Maricopa County Board of Supervisors serves as the Board of Directors of
the Stadium District, it is able to significantly influence the programs, projects, activities, or level of
services provided by the District; therefore, the District is considered a blended component unit of the
County. The Stadium District also issues separate financial statements. Complete financial
statements for the Maricopa County Stadium District may be obtained at the entity’s administrative
office listed below:

Maricopa County Stadium District
401 East Jefferson

Phoenix, Arizona 85004
www.maricopa.gov/stadiumdistrict/

Maricopa County Street Lighting Districts

The Maricopa County Street Lighting Districts are legally separate entities that provide street lighting
in areas of the County that are not under local city jurisdictions. As the Maricopa County Board of
Supervisors serves as the Board of Directors of the Street Lighting Districts, it is able to significantly
influence the programs, projects, activities, or level of services provided by the District; therefore, the
Districts are considered a blended component unit of the County.

Housing Authority of Maricopa County

The Housing Authority is a legally separate entity pursuant to A.R.S. §36-1404 that provides efficient
and affordable rental housing to low-income households of Maricopa County. As the Maricopa
County Board of Supervisors serves as the Housing Authority’s Board of Commissioners, it is able to
significantly influence the programs, projects, activities, or level of services provided by the Housing
Authority; therefore, the Housing Authority is a blended component unit of the County. The Housing
Authority also issues separate financial statements which include three discretely presented
component units, Rose Terrace Development Partnership, L.L.C., Rose Terrace Development
Partnership Phase I, L.L.C, and Maricopa Revitalization Partnership, L.L.C. These component units
are combined and reported with the Housing Authority as a single enterprise fund on Maricopa
County’s financial statements.
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Complete financial statements for the Housing Authority of Maricopa County and their component
units may be obtained at the entity’s administrative office listed below:

Housing Authority of Maricopa County
8910 N. 78" Avenue, Building D
Peoria, Arizona 85345
www.maricopahousing.org

Related Organization

The Industrial Development Authority of Maricopa County (Authority) is a legally separate entity that
was created to assist in the financing of commercial and industrial enterprises; safe, sanitary, and
affordable housing; and healthcare facilities. The Authority fulfills its function through the issuance of
tax exempt or taxable revenue bonds. The County Board of Supervisors appoints the Authority’s
Board of Directors. The Authority’s operations are completely separate from the County and the
County is not financially accountable for the Authority. Therefore, the financial activities of the
Authority have not been included in the accompanying financial statements.

B. Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements include both government-wide statements and fund financial
statements. The government-wide statements focus on the County as a whole, while the fund
financial statements focus on major funds. Each presentation provides valuable information that can
be analyzed and compared between years and between governments to enhance the information’s
usefulness.

Government-wide financial statements — provide information about the primary government (the
County) and its component units. The statements include a statement of net position and a statement
of activities. These statements report the overall government’s financial activities, except for fiduciary
activities. They also distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the
County. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes and intergovernmental
revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for each function of the County’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular
function. The County allocates indirect expenses to programs or functions. Program revenues
include:

e charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided,;
e operating grants and contributions; and
e capital grants and contributions, including special assessments.

Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including internally dedicated resources,
unrestricted grant revenues, and all taxes the County levies or imposes, are reported as general
revenues.

Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements to minimize the double counting of internal activities. However, charges for interfund
services provided and used are not eliminated if doing so would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported by the departments concerned.

Fund financial statements — provide information about the County’s funds, including fiduciary funds

and blended component units. Separate statements are presented for the governmental, proprietary,
and fiduciary fund categories. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental
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and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Internal service and fiduciary funds are aggregated and
reported by fund type.

Proprietary fund revenues and expenses are classified as either operating or nonoperating.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from transactions associated with the fund’s
principal activity. Accordingly, revenues, such as user charges, in which each party receives and
gives up essentially equal values, are reported as operating revenues. Other revenues, such as
subsidies, result from transactions in which the parties do not exchange equal values and are
considered nonoperating revenues along with investment earnings and revenues ancillary activities
generate. Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. Other expenses, such as interest expense, are considered nonoperating
expenses.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund — is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Detention Operations Fund — was established under the authority of propositions 400 and 401,
which were passed in the General Election of November 3, 1998. These propositions authorized a
temporary 1/5 of one-cent sales tax to be used for the construction and operation of adult and juvenile
detention facilities. On November 5, 2002, the voters approved the extension of the 1/5 of one-cent
sales tax in the General Election to be used for jail facility operations. The extension begins in the
month following the expiration of the original tax and may continue for not more than twenty years
after the date the tax collection begins. The Detention Operations Fund accounts for the receipt of
tax revenue, jail operations expenditures, and transfers to the Detention Capital Projects Fund and
Detention Technology Capital Improvement Fund for construction of the adult and juvenile detention
facilities and detention technology infrastructure.

The County Improvement Debt Fund — accounts for the debt service on the Lease Revenue Bonds,
Series 2007A; Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B; and other long-term obligations. This
fund’s main revenue source is from transfers for the repayment of debt.

The Detention Capital Projects Fund — accounts for construction associated with the 1/5 of one-cent
sales tax approved by voters in the General Election on November 3, 1998, and extended by the
voters on November 5, 2002. Funding is provided by transfers from the Detention Operations Fund
for construction of the adult and juvenile detention facilities.

The General Fund County Improvements Fund — was established to fund current and future capital
projects. Fund assets may be used to pay directly for capital projects or may be appropriated by the
Board of Supervisors for debt service. Revenues in this fund consist mainly of transfers from the
General Fund. None of the funds has been pledged for debt service, and fund assets may be
transferred by the Board of Supervisors at any time for any other County purpose.

The Technology Capital Improvement Fund — was established to account for General Fund and other
resources committed for technology improvement projects.

The County reports the following major enterprise fund:
The Housing Authority Fund — accounts for the activities of the Housing Authority of Maricopa County.
The County also reports the following fund types:

The internal service funds — account for automotive maintenance and service, telecommunications
services, printing and duplicating services, insurance services, self-insured employee benefits, and
warehouse services provided to County departments or to other governments on a cost
reimbursement basis.
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The investment trust fund — accounts for pooled assets the County Treasurer holds and invests on
behalf of other governmental entities.

The agency fund — accounts for assets the County holds as an agent for other governments and
individuals.

C. Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The agency funds
are custodial in nature and do not have a measurement focus but utilize the accrual basis of
accounting for reporting its assets and liabilities. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses
are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and donations
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.

Governmental funds in the fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when they become both measurable and available. The County considers
all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within 60
days after year-end. The County’s major revenue sources that are susceptible to accrual are property
taxes, intergovernmental, charges for services, and investment income. Expenditures are recorded
when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt,
landfill closure and postclosure care costs, pollution remediation obligations, claims and judgments,
and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they are due and
payable. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Loan proceeds and acquisitions under capital lease agreements are reported as other financing
sources.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of grants
and general revenues. Therefore, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted
and unrestricted net position resources available to finance the program. For these types of
programs, the County applies grant resources to such programs before using general revenues. For
all other programs, the County uses unrestricted revenues first.

D. Cash and Investments

For the statement of cash flows, the County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash
on hand, demand deposits, cash and investments held by the County Treasurer, and only those
highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Short-term debt investments, with remaining maturities of up to 90 days at the date of the financial
statements, and nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts are reported at amortized
cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

E. Inventories

The County accounts for its inventories in the governmental funds using the purchase method.
Inventories of the governmental funds consist of expendable supplies held for consumption and are
recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Amounts on hand at year-end are shown on the
balance sheet as an asset for informational purposes only and as nonspendable fund balance to
indicate that they do not constitute “available spendable resources.” These inventories are stated at
weighted-average cost.
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Inventories of government-wide and the internal service funds financial statements are recorded as
assets when purchased and expensed when consumed. The amounts shown on the statement of net
position for government-wide and the internal service funds are valued at cost using first-in, first-out
and the moving average methods, respectively.

F. Property Tax Calendar

The County levies real property taxes and commercial personal property taxes on or before the third
Monday in August that become due and payable in two equal installments. The first installment is
due on the first day of October and becomes delinquent after the first business day of November. The
second installment is due on the first day of March of the next year and becomes delinquent after the
first business day of May.

During the year, the County also levies mobile home personal property taxes that are due the second
Monday of the month following receipt of the tax notice and become delinquent 30 days later.

A lien assessed against real and personal property attaches on the first day of January preceding
assessment and levy.

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the government-wide statements and the
proprietary funds. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Type of Assets Estimated Useful Life (In Years)
Buildings and improvements 20 - 650
Infrastructure 25 - 50
Autos and trucks 3 - 10
Other equipment 3 - 20

All infrastructure assets are reported on the government-wide financial statements. Infrastructure
maintained by the County Department of Transportation consists of roadways, bridges and related
assets. These assets are not depreciated as they are reported using the modified approach. Under
the modified approach, the County’s roadway and bridge systems are being preserved at a specified
condition level established by the County. For information on the modified approach, see Required
Supplementary Information — Modified Approach for Infrastructure Assets. The Flood Control District
accounts for the County’s remaining infrastructure assets consisting of drainage systems, dams, flood
channels and canals.

For the Department of Transportation’s infrastructure assets owned prior to fiscal year 2002, the
County estimated their historical cost. The fair market value for right-of-way assets was estimated
based on current regional land acquisitions and deflated by the trended growth rate, as determined by
the County assessed valuation from the State of Arizona Department of Revenue Abstract of the
Assessment Roll for vacant land, agriculture and government property not including legally exempt
land. The fair market value for roadway system assets was estimated based on current construction
costs and deflated using the Price Trends for Federal-Aid Highway Construction, published by the
U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, Office of Program Administration
and Office of Infrastructure.

Flood Control District infrastructure assets are accounted for using the straight-line depreciation
method with a useful life between 25 and 50 years. For infrastructure assets owned prior to fiscal
year 2002, the County used internal records, maintained by the Flood Control District, to estimate
Flood Control’s historical cost for these assets.
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H. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

The statement of net position and balance sheet include separate sections for deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a
consumption of net position that applies to future periods that will be recognized as an expense or
expenditure in future periods. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position
or fund balance that applies to future periods and will be recognized as revenue in future periods.

I.  Fund Balance Classifications

The governmental funds’ fund balances are reported separately within classifications based on a
hierarchy of the constraints placed on those resources’ use. The classifications are based on the
relative strength of the constraints that control how the specific amounts can be spent. The
classifications are nonspendable, restricted, and unrestricted, which includes committed, assigned,
and unassigned fund balance classifications.

The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are either not in spendable form, such as inventories, or are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact. Restricted fund balances are those that have externally imposed restrictions on
their usage by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws and
regulations.

The unrestricted fund balance category is composed of committed, assigned, and unassigned
resources. Committed fund balances are self-imposed limitations the County’s Board of Supervisors
approved, which is the highest level of decision-making authority within the County. Only the Board
can remove or change the constraints placed on committed fund balances.

Assigned fund balances are resources constrained by the County’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Only the Board of Supervisors has authorization
to assign fund balances.

The unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all
spendable amounts not reported in the other classifications. Also, deficits in fund balances of the
other governmental funds are reported as unassigned.

The County’s policy is to account for most restricted and committed revenue sources (subject to legal
restriction, etc.) by segregating them in a separate fund; however, by its nature, the General Fund
may have several different classifications of fund balance. Therefore, when expending General Fund
fund balance, if an expenditure is incurred that can be paid from either restricted or unrestricted fund
balances, it is the County’s policy to use unrestricted fund balance first. For the disbursement of
unrestricted fund balances, it is the County’s policy to use unassigned amounts first, followed by
assigned amounts, and lastly committed amounts.

J. Investment Income

Investment income is composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in the fair value of applicable
investments.

K. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences consist of vacation leave and a calculated amount of sick leave employees
earned based on services already rendered. Employees may accumulate, and roll-over from year-to-
year, up to 240 or 320 hours (depending on employee classification) of vacation leave, but any
vacation hours in excess of the maximum amount that are unused at calendar year-end convert to
sick leave. Upon terminating employment, all unused vacation benefits are paid to employees.
Accordingly, vacation benefits are accrued as a liability in the financial statements.
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Employees may accumulate an unlimited number of sick leave hours. Generally, sick leave benefits
provide for ordinary sick pay and are cumulative but employees forfeit them upon terminating
employment. Because sick leave benefits do not vest with employees, a liability for sick leave
benefits is not accrued in the financial statements. However, upon retirement, County employees
with accumulated sick leave in excess of 1,000 hours are entitled to a $10,000 nontaxable investment
in a Post-Employment Health Plan (PEHP) established pursuant to Internal Revenue Code
8501(c)(9). The obligations vested at June 30, 2014, under this policy are accrued as a liability.

Compensated absences are substantially paid within one year from fiscal year-end and, therefore,
are reported as a current liability on the government-wide financial statements. A liability for these
amounts is reported in the governmental funds’ financial statements only if they have matured, for

example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements by fiscal year-end.

NOTE 2 — FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The fund balance classifications of the governmental funds as of June 30, 2014, were as follows:

Detention General Fund Technology
Detention County Capital County Capital Other
General Operations Improvement Projects Improvements  Improvement Governmental
Fund Fund Debt Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory $ 4,770,325 $ 70,558 $ $ $ $ $ 2,216,556 $ 7,057,439
Loan receivable 15,000,000 15,000,000
Total nonspendable 19,770,325 70,558 2,216,556 22,057,439
Restricted for:
Debt service 14,484,379 4,430,872 18,915,251
Education 3,053,137 3,053,137
Flood control 41,004,478 41,004,478
General government 37,801 37,801
Health and welfare 21,389,253 21,389,253
Judicial activities 18,436,469 18,436,469
Law enforcement 61,258,394 190,241,941 61,203,088 312,703,423
Library District 13,130,259 13,130,259
Other purposes 9,405,861 9,405,861
Parks and recreation 5,812,455 5,812,455
Social services 146,731 146,731
Stadium District 18,758,079 18,758,079
Transportation 76,696,424 76,696,424
Waste management 2,470,835 2,470,835
Total restricted 61,258,394 14,484,379 190,241,941 275,975,742 541,960,456
Committed to:
Capital projects 299,933,185 236,759,844 128,250 536,821,279
Debt service 4,997,993 4,997,993
Health and welfare 9,434,563 9,434,563
Other purposes 3,272,669 3,272,669
Total committed 4,997,993 299,933,185 236,759,844 12,835,482 554,526,504
Assigned to:
General government 113,712,308 113,712,308
Total assigned 113,712,308 113,712,308
Unassigned 7,490,426 (2,385,853) 5,104,573

Total fund balances $ 140,973,059 $ 61,328,952 $

19,482,372 $ 190,241,941 $ 299,933,185 $ 236,759,844 $ 288,641,927 $ 1,237,361,280

Stabilization Arrangements — The Board of Supervisors has the authority to authorize and establish a
stabilization arrangement by formal action. Subsequent modification, addition to, or expenditure from any
stabilization arrangements also requires formal action by the Board of Supervisors, the highest level of
decision-making authority within the County. At June 30, 2014, the General Fund did not have fund
balances committed for budget stabilization.
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NOTE 3 — REPORTING CHANGES

Beginning in fiscal year 2014, the Housing Authority Fund will be reported as major proprietary fund
(enterprise fund). In the prior year, the Housing Authority Fund was reported as a nonmajor
governmental fund (special revenue fund). This reporting change is consistent with the Housing Authority
Fund’s separately issued financial statements. In addition, the County established the Sheriff Towing and
Impound Fund (special revenue fund), a nonmajor governmental fund. The County also renamed several
funds to unify the fund names with the County’s Annual Business Strategies budget book.

NOTE 4 — BEGINNING BALANCES RESTATED

On July 1, 2013, Maricopa County restated governmental funds beginning fund balance and
governmental activities beginning net position for a prior period correction of $3,618,275 related to inmate
billing revenues in the Detention Operations Fund that should have been recorded in a prior fiscal year.

On July 1, 2013, Maricopa County restated beginning net position of governmental activities and the
internal service funds for a prior period correction related to the Employee Benefits Trust Fund of
$4,947,028 for an overpayment of capitation expense that was refunded by the insurance provider.

On July 1, 2013, Maricopa County restated governmental activities capital asset and beginning net
position balances by ($877,533) for construction in progress related to non-deployed vehicles that should
have been deleted in a prior fiscal year.

In fiscal year 2013, the Housing Authority Fund was reported as special revenue fund. Beginning July 1,
2013, the Housing Authority Fund is presented as an enterprise fund to correspond with the manner in
which they are presented in the Housing Authority of Maricopa County's separately issued audited
financial statements. As a result, on July 1, 2013, Maricopa County restated beginning fund balance of
the governmental funds for ($4,872,010) and beginning net position of governmental activities, business-
type activities and the enterprise funds of ($33,217,783). In addition, on July 1, 2013, the Housing
Authority restated beginning business-type activities and enterprise fund net position of ($96,568) for the
net unamortized balance of debt issuance costs in accordance with the implementation of GASB 65.

On July 1, 2013, the County restated governmental activities infrastructure asset and net position
balances by ($22,395,238) for corrections of prior periods resulting from infrastructure assets that that
should have been deleted in a prior fiscal year.

Beginning net position and beginning fund balances were adjusted for the above, as follows:

Enterprise
Business- Total Fund — Internal
Governmental type Governmental Housing Service
Activities Activities Funds Authority Funds
Net position/fund balance reported as of June 30,
2013 $4,656,497,248 $ $1,357,865,349 $ $ 15,958,338
Plus: Detention Operations Fund receivables 3,618,275 3,618,275
Plus: Employee Benefits 4,947,028 4,947,028
Minus: Construction In Progress corrections (877,533)
Plus/(Minus): Housing Authority Reclassification (33,217,783) 33,217,783 ($4,872,010) 33,217,783
Minus: Housing Authority GASB 65 (96,568) (96,568)

Minus: Infrastructure corrections

Net position/fund balance as of July 1, 2013, as
restated

(22,395,238)

$4,608,571,997 $33,121,215 $1,356,611,614 $33,121,215 $ 20,905,366
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NOTE 5 — RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Governmental Funds Balance Sheet includes the reconciliation between fund balances - total
governmental funds and net position — Governmental Activities as reported in the government-wide
Statement of Net Position. The details of this reconciliation follow:

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,237,361,280

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

Land 754,229,626
Buildings and improvements 1,874,200,974
Machinery and equipment 351,602,596
Infrastructure 988,268,005
Construction in progress 385,295,337
Accumulated depreciation (824,810,104)
Net governmental funds capital assets at June 30, 2014 3,528,786,434

Some receivables are not available to pay for current period expenditures and therefore,
are reported as unavailable revenue in funds.

Unavailable revenue for property taxes receivable at June 30, 2014 7,625,127
Unavailable revenue for grant revenues receivable at June 30, 2014 4,286,665
Unavailable revenue for other revenues receivable at June 30, 2014 4,561,368

16,473,160

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of equipment services,

telecommunications, reprographics, risk management, employee benefits, and the sheriff

warehouse to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are

included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. 18,656,279

Some deferred outflows, long-term liabilities, and compensated absences are not due and
payable shortly after June 30, 2014, and therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Noncurrent lease revenue bonds due in more than one year at June 30, 2014 (97,135,000)
Stadium District revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2014 (19,260,000)
Special assessment debt with governmental commitment payable at June 30, 2014 (45,126)
Deferred charges on debt refunding at June 30, 2014 523,477
Bond premium unamortized at June 30, 2014 (559,708)
Claims and judgments at June 30, 2014 (1,546,046)
Governmental funds compensated absences payable at June 30, 2014 (70,957,205)
Liability for closure and postclosure costs at June 30, 2014 (8,236,052)
Accrued interest payable at June 30, 2014 (36,594)

(197,252,254)

Net position of governmental activities $  4,604,024,899
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The governmental fund reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances is a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and
changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide Statement of
Activities. The details of this reconciliation follow:

Net change in fund balances — total governmental funds $ (119,711,795)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Governmental funds capital outlay 194,236,812
Government-wide depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 (83,303,695)
Add: Internal service funds depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 1,174,966
112,108,083

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets is to decrease net position.
Donations of capital assets 24,649,051
Net value of disposed capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2014 (36,584,553)

(11,935,502)
Collections of certain revenues in the governmental funds exceeded revenues reported in the Statement
of Activities. Also, revenue in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Collections of grant revenues plus current-year revenues exceeding amount reported as earned

during the year ended June 30, 2014 (2,463,534)

Collections of property taxes plus current-year revenues exceeding amount reported as earned
during the year ended June 30, 2014 (2,845,889)
Other revenue earned during the year ended June 30, 2014 4,561,368
(748,055)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position.
Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is issued,
whereas these amounts are amortized in the Statement of Activities. This amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Principal payments on lease revenue bonds 11,840,000
Principal payments on Stadium District revenue bonds 3,180,000
Principal payments on Stadium District loan payable 5,706,857
Principal payments on special assessment debt with governmental commitment 18,036
Amortization of bond premium 146,312
Amortization of deferred charges on debt refunding (666,497)
Accrued interest payable on long-term debt 6,042

20,230,750

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Net increase in employee compensation payable (6,477,058)
Increase in inventories 461,461
Net decrease in claims and judgments 3,212,395
Net decrease in liability for closure and postclosure costs 561,710

(2,241,492)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of equipment services,
telecommunications, reprographics, risk management, employee benefits, and the sheriff
warehouse to individual funds. The net expense of internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities. (2,249,087)

Change in net position of governmental activities $ (4,547,098)
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NOTE 6 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

At June 30, 2014, the following other governmental and internal service funds reported deficits in fund
balances or net position.

FUND DEFICIT
Governmental Funds:
Adult Probation Grants $ 152,581
Air Quality Grants 191,802
Animal Control Grants 71,412
CDBG Housing Trust 444,493
Clerk of the Court Grants 4,981
County Attorney Grants 99,450
Human Services Grants 255,317
Public Defender Grants 5,010
School Grants 302,481
Sheriff Grants 764,637
Sheriff RICO 3,991
Superior Court Fill the GAP 48,776
Superior Court Grants 30,961
Transportation Grants 9,961

Internal Service Funds:
Risk Management $ 30,195,879

The deficits in fund balances for Adult Probation Grants, Air Quality Grants, Animal Control Grants, CDBG
Housing Trust, Clerk of the Court Grants, County Attorney Grants, Human Services Grants, Public
Defender Grants, School Grants, Sheriff Grants, Superior Court Grants, and Transportation Grants Funds
were attributed to the deferring of certain grant revenues. The County accrues grant revenue received
within 60 days after year-end, as it is available and measurable. Revenues received after 60 days are
considered not available and are therefore unearned.

The Risk Management Fund'’s funding plan calls for the fiscal year ending cash balance to equal the next
year’s estimated claims and claims related expenses. As of June 30, 2014, the total net position deficit
was $30,195,879. This is primarily due to the Risk Management Fund not being funded for noncurrent
accrued claim liabilities.

The remaining fund balance deficits for the Sheriff RICO and Superior Court Fill the GAP Funds resulted
from operations during the year and are expected to be corrected during normal operations in fiscal year
2015.

NOTE 7 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) authorize the County to invest public monies in the State Treasurer’s
investment pool; obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States or any of the senior debt of its
agencies, sponsored agencies, corporations, sponsored corporations, or instrumentalities; specified state
and local government bonds, notes, and other evidences of indebtedness; interest-earning investments
such as savings accounts, certificates of deposit, and repurchase agreements in eligible depositories;
specified commercial paper issued by corporations organized and doing business in the United States;
specified bonds, debentures, notes, and other evidences of indebtedness that are denominated in United
States dollars; and certain open-end and closed-end mutual funds, including exchange traded funds. In
addition, the County Treasurer may invest trust funds in certain fixed income securities of corporations
doing business in the United States or District of Columbia.
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Credit risk
Statutes have the following requirements for credit risk:

1. Commercial paper must be of prime quality and be rated within the top two ratings by a nationally
recognized rating agency.

2. Bonds, debentures, notes, and other evidences of indebtedness that are denominated in United
States dollars must be rated “A” or better, at the time of purchase, by at least two nationally
recognized rating agencies.

3. Fixed income securities must carry one of the two highest ratings by Moody’s investors’ service
and Standard and Poor’s rating service. If only one of the above-mentioned services rates the
security, it must carry the highest rating of that service.

Custodial credit risk
Statutes require collateral for deposits and certificates of deposit at 101 percent of all deposits not
covered by federal depository insurance.

Concentration of credit risk
Statutes do not include any requirements for concentration of credit risk.

Interest rate risk

Statutes require that public monies invested in securities and deposits have a maximum maturity of 5
years. However, the Stadium District is allowed by a separate statute to invest monies, not held for
operations, in eligible investments with a maturity of greater than 5 years. The maximum maturity for
investments in repurchase agreements is 180 